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          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Good morning,

          3  everyone. I'd like to call the Subcommittee on

          4  Zoning and Franchises to order.

          5                 We have a number of items on the

          6  agenda today. First, I'd like to introduce the

          7  members of my Committee that are here.

          8                 To my left, Council Member Mike

          9  McMahon from Staten Island. Council Member Christine

         10  Quinn from Manhattan, and Council Member Eric Gioia

         11  from Queens.

         12                 We have three items on the agenda,

         13  two of which relate to sidewalk cafes and one Land

         14  Use item.

         15                 What I'd like to do is take the

         16  sidewalk cafe issues first, and I just have a brief

         17  statement that I'd like to read, and then we'll

         18  proceed with that part of the hearing.

         19                 I am pleased to be here today with

         20  the members of my Committee to consider a bill and

         21  zoning change which would make more rational and

         22  effective the City's approach to the establishment

         23  of sidewalk cafes.

         24                 Over the past year, as Chair of this

         25  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises, I have
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          2  reviewed over 100 applications for revocable consent

          3  for sidewalk cafes.

          4                 As land issues go, these cafes may

          5  seem like a minor matter, but to the communities in

          6  which the cafes are located, the cafes become a

          7  major quality of life issue.

          8                 To the restaurant owners, the lack of

          9  certainty as to their continued ability to operate

         10  legally their cafes, combined with lengthy and

         11  labyrinth review process, have led to an increasing

         12  number of cafes operating without benefit of permit

         13  or license.

         14                 The process has become so flawed that

         15  some cafes received approval for their cafe after

         16  the period for approval had expired.

         17                 This bill will consolidate the entire

         18  licensing, permitting and enforcement responsibility

         19  in one agency of the Department of Consumer Affairs

         20  and will streamline the process of obtaining

         21  necessary reviews.

         22                 The community board and the Council

         23  will remain an integral albeit enhanced part of the

         24  review process.

         25                 Best of all, this bill will give

                                                            5

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  Consumer Affairs significant tools in their

          3  enforcement efforts against illegal sidewalk cafes,

          4  while making it easier for cafes to become properly

          5  licensed.

          6                 Now, combined with my colleague

          7  Council Member Phil Reed and his Committee on

          8  Consumer Affairs, we had the public hearing on the

          9  bill aspect on December 12th, and that was Intro.

         10  294, 20035103LLY. Today we will be reviewing the

         11  zoning aspect of this legislation, Land Use number

         12  307, and 030119ZRY, for an amendment of the rezoning

         13  resolution of the City of New York, relating to

         14  Section 12-10, Article 1, Chapter 4, in relation to

         15  physical and locational requirements for unenclosed

         16  sidewalk cafe.

         17                 I see we've also been joined by

         18  Council Member Melinda Katz, Chair of the Land Use

         19  Committee.

         20                 What I'd like to do is call up the

         21  representatives for City Planning and Consumer

         22  Affairs. First Larry Parnes and Mary Ann Nizzico

         23  from City Planning, and Pauline Toole from the

         24  Department of Consumer Affairs.

         25                 Probably what's best in order is,
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          2  Larry, why don't you start on the zoning aspects of

          3  it and then I will ask Consumer Affairs to comment

          4  on some of the outstanding issues that were brought

          5  up at the hearing on December 12th.

          6                 MR. PARNES: I'm Larry Parnes, Deputy

          7  Executive Director, Department of City Planning.

          8  We've adopted an amendment to the zoning resolution,

          9  which essentially removes all regulations as they

         10  relate to unenclosed cafes from the zoning

         11  resolution.

         12                 So basically in conjunction with

         13  Intro. 294, the Department of City Planning will no

         14  longer be involved in the review of unenclosed

         15  sidewalk cafes. It's as simple as that. If there's

         16  any questions?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Does my Committee

         18  members have any questions?

         19                 MS. TOOLE: Hi. Thank you for the

         20  opportunity to come back and clear up some of the

         21  questions that remained after the public hearing,

         22  after your hearing in December.

         23                 As we recall, there were basically

         24  three. One was the role of the Mayor's Office of

         25  Contracts, and some members wanted that to be
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          2  eliminated.

          3                 It is required to review all

          4  contracts by the City Charter so that cannot be

          5  changed but the process gives them five days in

          6  which to carry out the responsibilities, and that

          7  will be outlined in the whole set of rules that

          8  we'll be doing and this Administration is committed

          9  to making sure that the process is streamlined and

         10  efficient and that things don't get held up just

         11  because they're lost in the bureaucracy.

         12                 The second issue was what happens

         13  when a cafe is sold to a new owner, and would that

         14  cafe be able to continue operating in the interim?

         15  And the answer is yes, and we will address that

         16  rule-making, as long as the new owner maintains the

         17  size of the cafe and the scope of the cafe,

         18  according to the application that's been approved,

         19  they would be able to continue to operate.

         20                 And thirdly, the fine structure. We

         21  propose a new fine structure, and it's changed in

         22  two ways. First, the amount of the fines is doubled

         23  for inflation, so the initial fine would be $500. Up

         24  to $500. And then you could have up to three

         25  violations, that could amount to money that a person
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          2  would pay if the violation was upheld, would just

          3  double at the minimum. And the thing that's more

          4  critical for us is the ability to padlock a

          5  restaurant, if it's violated either two or three

          6  times. And we think it's a great process, and we

          7  thank you all for your support.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Questions?

          9  Council Member Christine Quinn.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you. On

         11  New Years Eve I came out of the movies and both

         12  Assistant Commissioner and the Commissioner happened

         13  to be there at the movies, going to the movies with

         14  John Feinblatt, the Mayor's Criminal Justice

         15  Coordinator, so I thought there was like a horrible

         16  DCA Department-related sting going on. I was not in

         17  the movies in my district, so my concern was not as

         18  deep -- no, I'm only kidding.

         19                 But they were all just independently

         20  going to the movies, there were no problems with the

         21  popcorn, I was glad to see.

         22                 The issue with the Mayor's Office of

         23  Contracts, so they can't be removed, that's a

         24  Charter thing. The five-day time line or deadline,

         25  whatever the right word is, that will be in the
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          2  regulations? It's not what we're voting on today,

          3  but in the regulations. Let's say, not that this

          4  would ever happen with any City agency, but that MOC

          5  took 15 days or 20 days, then what happens? Is it

          6  deemed approved, if they went over the deadline?

          7                 MS. TOOLE: I don't think we can do

          8  that. The Charter gives them this final say. We

          9  can't say, well, okay you didn't do what you were

         10  supposed to do, so we're going to circumvent the

         11  Charter. We don't have that capability.

         12                 I think their functions have been

         13  dramatically changed, so the amount of time it would

         14  take to do the review is very small, so they should

         15  be able to meet that requirement.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: No, I mean I

         17  think it's great how much less they're going to do,

         18  and I think it's particularly great that they're not

         19  going to do these, like, unbelievably intrusive

         20  background checks anymore. I really applaud you all

         21  for moving in that direction. If the regulations

         22  give them five days -- well, we anticipate the

         23  regulations will give them five days, so what

         24  happens if it takes longer? And will the regulations

         25  speak to that?
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          2                 MS. TOOLE: I don't think that they

          3  can speak to that at all. I think that we are

          4  setting forth the process, and we will presume that

          5  the agencies will act efficiently and expeditiously,

          6  but I don't think at the end of the day we can

          7  curtail that office. I don't think we have that

          8  authority.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: It just seems

         10  odd, though, because if we don't act in a certain

         11  time line on some things, and it's deemed approved

         12  or disapproved --

         13                 MS. TOOLE: But that's spelled out in

         14  the Charter, Councilwoman. And the Charter could be

         15  changed potentially to amend that process, but we in

         16  rule-making can't do that, in the same way that you

         17  can't do it as part of the local law, right? It has

         18  to go through that other process.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, it's really

         20  a suggested five days, it's not a deadline?

         21                 MS. TOOLE: Yes, that would be true.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Counsel has

         23  advised me that in effect to limit them to the five

         24  days, may in effect restrict the power of the Mayor,

         25  and may actually require a referendum to do.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: What about the

          3  issue of, this came up at the last hearing, let's

          4  say that the time line for some, you know, reason it

          5  did take longer in MOC and then people had to

          6  reapply, the issue was raised since we can't do

          7  that, that then we would not charge them the fee to

          8  reapply if their need to reapply was facilitated by

          9  it being delayed?

         10                 MS. TOOLE: They wouldn't have to

         11  reapply.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: They wouldn't

         13  have to reapply.

         14                 MS. TOOLE: If there were a delay at

         15  MOC, no.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay.

         17                 And there's no way to sanction MOC

         18  for not doing it. That's all Charter.

         19                 If you could tell me a little bit

         20  about what the franchise fee are going to look like

         21  and how that amount and how that work will be

         22  determined. I know that's a procedure outside of

         23  today, but if you wouldn't mind just commenting on

         24  that. Concerns have certainly been raised about the

         25  degree to which the fees might -- I mean, I guess
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          2  not might, are anticipated to increase.

          3                 MS. TOOLE: Yes. The fees, let me just

          4  find the correct structure, the fees currently are

          5  assessed in a system that uses three different

          6  zones, and under our proposal there will be three

          7  zones, one which is Manhattan below 96th Street, and

          8  the other is the rest of the City.

          9                 The square footage cost currently in

         10  zone 1, which is the prime area of Manhattan, is

         11  $10.94 a square foot, which is incredibly low and

         12  was reduced about ten years ago, following -- we're

         13  lucky we're in this Committee and not Consumer

         14  Affairs.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I know. I know.

         16                 MS. TOOLE: Following a formula no one

         17  quite understands. So what we have done is we have

         18  looked at the cost of rent in the central business

         19  district and reduced it, and reduced it by 50

         20  percent because the cafes aren't open all of the

         21  time, and we came up with a formula it seems to work

         22  and what would happen is that for the first 20

         23  square feet of a cafe, the owner would pay $1,920 as

         24  a flat rate, and that would allow a small business,

         25  what only had one or two tables out, to pay the base
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          2  rate to rent the sidewalks, and then for every

          3  square foot in addition to that in the zone 1, the

          4  restaurateur would pay $30 a square foot. That would

          5  be our proposal.

          6                 And then in Zone 2, it's half of the

          7  cost in zone 1, I think.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: How much was

          9  it? Just repeat, again, the increase, the proposed

         10  increase for zone 1.

         11                 MS. TOOLE: For zone 1, they currently

         12  don't pay a base, they pay $10.94 for basically $11

         13  for each square foot.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay.

         15                 MS. TOOLE: So, currently a small

         16  cafe, a 20 foot square cafe would be paying about

         17  $218, and they would increase to $1,920.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And has there

         19  been any consideration of maybe phasing that

         20  increase in so it didn't go, wasn't such an

         21  immediate dramatic increase, and could you do that

         22  in a regulatory fashion?

         23                 MS. TOOLE: I think it could be done

         24  in a regulatory fashion, but I think the view of the

         25  Commissioner is that the costs have been so
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          2  artificially low that this makes sense to, for the

          3  use of the public sidewalk to charge this amount of

          4  money, and that the fees are reasonable.

          5                 And we understand that there's a big

          6  difference between $218 and $1,920, but we think

          7  it's fair.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I would just

          9  ask, and I assume during the regulatory process

         10  there's public hearings and stuff, so we, you know,

         11  we independently could come back and have a further

         12  discussion on -- you know, I don't want to take up

         13  too much time today since it's not in our thing, but

         14  I would ask the agency to consider the possibility

         15  of phasing it in, because I don't disagree that the

         16  fees were low. My concern is that, you know, there

         17  may have been a restaurant that did a calculation

         18  that they could afford to have a sidewalk cafe, and

         19  that it would help their business based on tax, and

         20  that they may have to change things in their

         21  business plan to be able to continue to have a

         22  sidewalk cafe and make money at the new fee, and

         23  that we may need to give them the time to make those

         24  changes in their business plan, so we might want to

         25  phase it in, particularly in light of the increase
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          2  in property taxes that these businesses are also

          3  going to have to pay, which I voted for, but so if

          4  we could think, perhaps give them time to make that

          5  adjustment, I think that might be wise. So, if you

          6  could communicate that concern to the Commissioner

          7  and then also just let me know when those hearings

          8  are, that would be great.

          9                 MS. TOOLE: Okay, we can do both of

         10  those things. Thank you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         12                 MS. TOOLE: I just want to say, I just

         13  misspoke when I said the zone 2 was half the zone 1,

         14  it's 14.40 for the 20 square feet, and $22.50

         15  thereafter, so...

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Can I ask just

         17  one last question?

         18                 The increase in the fees, would that

         19  occur when your license or your permit, or whatever

         20  --

         21                 MS. TOOLE: License.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: License

         23  expires, the final year four of my five-year

         24  license, do the fees go up when I reapply for my new

         25  five-year license, or do they go up for my last year
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          2  right now?

          3                 MS. TOOLE: They would increase for

          4  your new license. But my understanding is that the

          5  721 licensed cafes in the City, their licenses

          6  expire at the end of February and March of this

          7  year.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: All of them?

          9                 MS. TOOLE: Yes. Not the franchises,

         10  but their licenses, they would all have to reapply

         11  for new licenses.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: All at the same

         13  time?

         14                 MS. TOOLE: All at the same time.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: No one better

         16  go on vacation.

         17                 MS. TOOLE: You can understand our

         18  commitment to making this work this year.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Explain that.

         20  Because the Chair of the Committee raised the point,

         21  well maybe it is kind of phased in in a staggering

         22  way because of expirations, which was a really good

         23  point I thought, but it sounds like that isn't. So,

         24  could you just --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: What if I
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          2  applied eight months ago for a sidewalk cafe, it's

          3  up in three months, or whatever it is? What you seem

          4  to be saying, and I must be misunderstanding, I

          5  don't know about the rest of the members on the

          6  Committee, it seems that you're saying every one of

          7  the sidewalk cafes, the 721 sidewalk cafes in the

          8  City of New York, and everyone is up at the same

          9  time, that doesn't seem to make sense.

         10                 MS. TOOLE: The period of the

         11  application is for two years, and people applied for

         12  cafes under the old system at different times and so

         13  they would get, and Andy, correct me if I'm wrong,

         14  they would have not a full two-year period in which

         15  to operate their cafe under the application I think,

         16  and then the franchise that you approve could have

         17  run anywhere from one to five years.

         18                 So, the franchise, would be in a

         19  completely different timetable than the license, and

         20  this will conform the two together.

         21                 MR. EILER: The license would all

         22  expire --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Can you speak

         24  into the microphone?

         25                 MR. EILER: Andrew Eiler, Consumer
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          2  Affairs Department.

          3                 The license would expire on the same

          4  day, February 28th. The revocable consents has run

          5  for a period of one to five years, so in the current

          6  system they do not run simultaneously, but the

          7  revised system will run simultaneously.

          8                 With respect to, I believe the

          9  consent fees, they can be changed. I mean, in other

         10  words, the consent fees would not run for the entire

         11  five-year period, but if the consent fees were to

         12  change, you can change them at the next year or

         13  something, so that basically the consent piece can

         14  be varied in change. How much the fee would have to

         15  be, but the license fee would of course be set by

         16  the law.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Didn't these

         18  businesses enter into a contract based on an amount

         19  --

         20                 MR. EILER: The contract is for the

         21  term, but if I recall correctly, that basically the

         22  fee itself can be varied within the term, so that

         23  the amount of the rent can be varied at specified

         24  times within the term of the consent.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: That's
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          2  presently in the contract.

          3                 MR. EILER: That's correct.

          4                 One can sign a lease and have

          5  escalator clauses in it. I mean, that's not -- the

          6  fee itself does not have to be fixed. I believe

          7  that's how it works with the consent fees. If you

          8  really -- I'd rather check the law and the rules to

          9  make sure about that.

         10                 MS. TOOLE: But all the licenses do

         11  expire because they have those half years.

         12                 MR. EILER: Right, that's correct. I

         13  mean, if a person applies within the period, what

         14  happens is their fee is pro-rated depending upon

         15  when in the period the licensee applies, so that

         16  within the first six months, I mean it's a two-year

         17  license, within the first six months I think the fee

         18  is the entire two-year license fee, but after that

         19  prorating kicks in, depending on when you apply

         20  within a period affects how much the license fee is.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So I guess the

         22  bottom line is the hope that much of -- to go back

         23  to kind of my concern or issue about potentially

         24  staggering, the hope that that might happen,

         25  organically if you will, because of how the process
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          2  was, it looks like there's significant amount of

          3  certainty that that will not be the case, which then

          4  just goes back to -- that would have been good if

          5  that was the case in a way, because then people

          6  would have, and we wouldn't have had to look at it

          7  in a regulatory fashion. That appears not to be the

          8  case, so I would just go back to my request to urge

          9  the agencies to look at that.

         10                 MS. TOOLE: And to let you know when

         11  the public hearing is so you can raise it again.

         12  Yes, Councilwoman, we'll be happy to.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And learn even

         14  more about sidewalk cafes and how it works.

         15                 MS. TOOLE: And that scurry system

         16  where if you applied eight months ago, you're up

         17  again.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right. Thank

         19  you.

         20                 MS. TOOLE: Sure.

         21                 Anything else? Thank you.

         22                 MR. BOOKMAN: Good morning. My name is

         23  Robert Bookman. I wasn't planning on testifying

         24  today. I'm in favor, as I testified last time, of

         25  the new streamlined process, but to the point that
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          2  was just discussed, a couple of -- do you want me to

          3  wait a minute?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I apologize for

          5  the delay.

          6                 First of all, let me just mention to

          7  both speakers, that the public hearing on the

          8  legislation end has been closed, and in effect we

          9  are into the public hearing on the zoning aspect of

         10  the legislation. So, what I would do is ask you to

         11  keep your remarks based to the zoning aspect of it.

         12                 Certainly, if there is any other

         13  issues that you feel you need to discuss, we can

         14  certainly do it outside of this hearing, and I'm

         15  sure that Consumer Affairs is more than willing to

         16  listen to whatever discussion you may have on

         17  outstanding issues.

         18                 MR. BOOKMAN: Thank you. My comment I

         19  think deals, you'll stop me if I'm wrong, is

         20  relating to the zoning aspect because it relates to,

         21  of course I could make sure it relates to anything I

         22  wanted to say anyway, I think it relates to the

         23  franchise fee, what we currently call the contract,

         24  which is what is reviewed by this Committee, you

         25  know, through the process.
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          2                 It's not about the amount of the

          3  fees, that will be dealt with in the regulatory

          4  process and we'll deal with that at the appropriate

          5  time, but Councilwoman Quinn's question raised an

          6  interesting issue which wasn't raised before and I'm

          7  not sure which part it falls into, to tell you the

          8  truth.

          9                 I also am not convinced, by the way,

         10  that the contract that people currently have,

         11  whether you could change the fees or not, but I

         12  understand that's a different issue, it's all going

         13  to be coordinated now I understand, so you don't

         14  have the license ending, which everybody ends at one

         15  time, and the contract ending at a different time.

         16  But Councilwoman Quinn made a half joking remark

         17  about nobody better go on vacation, does that mean

         18  that all of the contracts will be coming due at the

         19  same time and all call-ups will be all Citywide in

         20  the same month?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Unfortunately

         22  you're asking a question with legislation and I just

         23  noticed that our Department of Consumer Affairs

         24  person has just left the room. We will have to take

         25  this up, because, again, the public hearing is
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          2  closed on the actual legislation of it.

          3                 However, an interesting issue has

          4  been raised. We will take it up with Consumer

          5  Affairs.

          6                 MR. BOOKMAN: Councilwoman Quinn is

          7  just so smart. She only said it as a joke, she

          8  doesn't even realize that she just raised a really

          9  significant procedural problem that nobody thought

         10  of before. So that's all that I wanted to say. Thank

         11  you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Rest assured that

         13  we will take it up.

         14                 MR. BOOKMAN: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: With the agency

         16  and the Mayor's Office.

         17                 MR. BRILL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         18  My comments are directed to the Chapter 4 General

         19  Purposes provisions in 14-00A and E, as well as

         20  14-10, locational criteria for enclosed sidewalk

         21  cafes, as they have been published in the City

         22  Record.

         23                 My name is Robert Brill, I'm an

         24  attorney here in New York. So, I'm directing my

         25  comments to those provisions.
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          2                 As the Committee may be aware, both

          3  as the result of the zoning resolution and zoning

          4  text in general, as well as other pieces of

          5  legislation, and rules of different departments of

          6  the City of New York. There are different siting

          7  criteria and venerations of the clear sidewalk

          8  policy of the City, and it seems to me that what

          9  this legislation doesn't address, and it could be

         10  addressed by the Committee as an examination

         11  purpose, is all those different siting criterias

         12  that are out there, in order that they, if not be

         13  consistent, at least be cognizant of them, and that

         14  is something which in the telecommunications area,

         15  in the newsstand area, as well as with the

         16  streetscape, coordinated street furniture franchise,

         17  something which needs to be addressed and hasn't

         18  been, and it's going to be a problem in the future.

         19                 In that regard, one remedy might be,

         20  and it either can be expressed here in the zoning

         21  text, something to the effect as a general purpose,

         22  that all applications for sidewalk cafes be

         23  cognizant of all the other sited criteria for other

         24  street furniture, based on the zoning text and

         25  zoning resolutions, as well as through other City
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          2  laws.

          3                 It's a general purpose expression,

          4  but then departments, as well as City Council, can

          5  legislate and enact rules accordingly.

          6                 Finally, with respect to both the

          7  zoning text, and other provisions of the zoning

          8  text, it seems to me one thing that this Committee

          9  should be cognizant of and maybe can express in this

         10  legislation, this amendment to the zoning text, is

         11  the passage by, at least the Council committees, I

         12  think it's the Committee on Government Operations,

         13  of Intro. 119-A, that things that are filed as

         14  pursuant to this zoning resolution, or in order to

         15  get a license or what have you under this zoning

         16  resolution, should be filed electronically on the

         17  Internet and available for public scrutiny. This

         18  would enable the public and the government of the

         19  City of New York to have efficiencies in saving, and

         20  119-A of course is the vehicle by which you could do

         21  it, but you could also perhaps somehow work that in,

         22  perhaps into chapter or provision 14-00, as a

         23  general expression.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions?
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          2  Thank you.

          3                 If there are no other members of the

          4  public signed up to speak on this particular item, I

          5  will close the public hearing.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: If I can just

          7  comment just for one second, because I asked some

          8  questions before, I don't want anyone to think

          9  that's indicative of the idea that I might be

         10  against this bill.

         11                 I mean, the research I've done on

         12  this bill through your Committee, Mr. Chair, and the

         13  hearing that you had and everything that we've

         14  looked at, it seems like this is something that

         15  absolutely needs to be streamlined on both sides.

         16  And you know as well as I do in Queens, you know we

         17  have this problem where we have sidewalk cafes and

         18  we can't close them, and the idea that we have the

         19  power now to padlock some of these cafes and getting

         20  rid of their chairs and tables is not just a cost of

         21  doing business anymore. I think it's a good thing.

         22                 I do think that we need to follow-up

         23  with Council Member Quinn's comments, number one, to

         24  understand it better.

         25                 I don't know about anyone else at
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          2  this table, I was listening and thinking that

          3  somehow some of it didn't seem to quite gel for me

          4  and I'd like to know, this gentleman was talking

          5  about the contract and that he believes there's some

          6  sort of a clause in the contract that the prices can

          7  be changed or the fees can be changed midstream, I'd

          8  like to know -- he said he believes that he wasn't

          9  positive, so I think we should probably double-check

         10  on that. But I just wanted my comments to be on

         11  record, since I made questions to the Department of

         12  Consumer Affairs.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: With that we'll

         15  proceed to the next item on the agenda. Land Use No.

         16  303 C020216ZMM, an application submitted by the

         17  125th Street Gateway Ventures LLC, pursuant to

         18  sections 197-c and 201 of the New York City Charter

         19  for an amendment of the zoning map, changing from

         20  M1-2 district to a C4-4A district on streets bounded

         21  by East 126th Street and other locations.

         22                 We have two speakers on this item,

         23  Michael Dirzvlaitis, and Robert Davis.

         24                 Gentlemen.

         25                 MR. DAVIS: Good morning, Mr.
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          2  Chairman. My name is Robert Davis. I'm the attorney

          3  for 125th Street Gateway Ventures, the applicant for

          4  this rezoning.

          5                 As you said, the application would

          6  rezone to C44A a parcel that is bounded by Lexington

          7  Avenue on the east, 126th Street on the north, 125th

          8  Street on the south, and a line parallel to

          9  Lexington Avenue and 115 feet away from it, which is

         10  to say a fairly small piece of land. It is almost

         11  entirely owned by the applicant for the rezoning.

         12  There are a couple of other parcels on it,

         13  principally a luncheonette that the applicant does

         14  not own.

         15                 The southern half of the property is

         16  currently zoned C44. The northern half is M12. The

         17  southern half is occupied by a beautiful three-story

         18  commercial building that the applicant has

         19  constructed. It houses a Duane Reade Drug Store,

         20  Seaman's Furniture, and the offices of the New York

         21  State Association for Retarded Children.

         22                 The application, the Borough

         23  President's recommended approval, the community

         24  board has voted 33 in favor and no abstentions and

         25  no opposition.
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          2                 The property was in City ownership

          3  for about 25 years. It's in the Harlem, East Harlem

          4  Urban Renewal Area, known as site 14-A, and nothing

          5  happened during that period.

          6                 In 1998, EDC published a request for

          7  proposals, originally contemplating that the entire

          8  site would be rezoned. They then modified the RFP

          9  and required that at least a portion of the property

         10  be developed as of right and quickly.

         11                 Our client accepted that change,

         12  acquired the property and built the building that is

         13  now successfully there with financing from the

         14  Empire State Development Corporation and the

         15  Empowerment Zone as part of the package.

         16                 The principle effects of the rezoning

         17  would be, first of all, to change the uses on the

         18  northern part of the site that's in the M zone in a

         19  way that's consistent with both the surrounding area

         20  in the urban renewal plan, obviously facilitating

         21  developing of a broader range of commercial

         22  activities.

         23                 It would raise the FAR modestly on

         24  the southern half from 3.4 in the C44 to 4.0 in the

         25  C44A, and it would change the FAR in the northern
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          2  half from 2.0 in the M12 to the same 4.0. And it

          3  would eliminate a -- right now the property is

          4  subject to inconsistent parking requirements which

          5  create both an unnecessary requirement and a

          6  confusing one. The C44A does not have a parking

          7  requirement which seems appropriate given the

          8  location of the property near so much public

          9  transportation.

         10                 I think that really describes the

         11  proposal and the reason for it. I believe I've

         12  introduced Mr. Dirzvlaitis, who is one of the

         13  principals of 125th Street Gateway Ventures, we'd be

         14  happy to answer any questions the Committee has.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Before I turn it

         16  over for questions, if there are any, I would just

         17  mention that this lies within basically Council

         18  Member Phil Reed's district, and he is in support of

         19  the project.

         20                 Is there any questions from my

         21  colleagues?

         22                 Thank you, gentlemen.

         23                 MR. DAVIS: Pleasure, Mr. Chairman.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If there is no
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          2  one signed up to speak on this item, I will close

          3  the public hearing on it.

          4                 Okay, and we will move to a vote on

          5  all the items.

          6                 The Chair recommends approval, and

          7  just a quick comment before I vote, that I'm proud

          8  to be able to vote affirmatively in terms of the

          9  sidewalk cafe regulations, I think this is a major

         10  change. It would certainly streamline the process

         11  and it just goes to show you how complicated it is,

         12  that even today we have an issue that has come up in

         13  terms of the operation of how this will function.

         14                 I'll call on Counsel to call the

         15  vote.

         16                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Avella.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye on all.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         19  Quinn.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye on all. I

         21  just want to say, although similar to what

         22  Chairperson Katz said, although I had some questions

         23  and concerns about the fees, et cetera, I do know

         24  the bill we're voting on today as it relates to

         25  sidewalk cafe is a major improvement, and then
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          2  particularly in my district having the ability to

          3  change the punishment for violating your license to

          4  make it one that would actually not be something you

          5  could build into your business plan as an additional

          6  cost, will make a huge difference in making sure

          7  that businesses are allowed to have these and that

          8  bad ones don't.

          9                 So, I vote aye on all.

         10                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         11  Gioia.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: I vote yes to

         13  all.

         14                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         15  McMahon.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: I vote yes on

         17  all, and just want to commend the Chairman and the

         18  Committee for all the hard work they've done on

         19  these sidewalk, streamlining the rules, but was I

         20  correct in understanding that next month there will

         21  be how many thousands of new applications, and can I

         22  get an excuse from that meeting? Thank you.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

         24  at four in the affirmative, none in the negative,

         25  and no abstentions and referred to the full Land Use
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          2  Committee.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: In reference to

          4  the comment from my colleague, Councilman Mike

          5  McMahon. First of all, I appreciate the attendance

          6  from my colleagues, because this is actually one of

          7  the hardest-working committees, and I know it is

          8  tough on the Committee members to appear at all

          9  these Committee meetings, but because it is a Land

         10  Use item, we do have these things coming up

         11  routinely, and as you heard, we may have a whole

         12  bunch of sidewalk cafe applications that we're going

         13  to be dealing with.

         14                 But I do appreciate your attendance,

         15  and that concludes this meeting of the Subcommittee.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 10:33 a.m.)
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